I. INTRODUCTION 

Petitioner Erie Insurance Property and Casualty Company ("Erie") submits this brief on 

two questions certified by the United States District Court for the Northern District of West 

Virginia, under the Uniform Certification of Questions of Law Act, W. Va. Code § 51-lA-I, et 

seq. The District Court has certified the following questions: 

1. Applying West Virginia public policy and rules of contract construction, 
do the unambiguous exclusions in American National's policy for bodily injury or 
property damage "which is expected or intended by any insured even if the actual 
injury or damage is different than expected or intended," and "arising out of any 
criminal act committed by or at the direction of any insured," and the 
unambiguous exclusion in Erie's policy for "[b]odily injury, property damage, or 
personal injury expected or intended by 'anyone we protect' ...," preclude 
liability coverage for insureds who did not commit any intentional or criminal 
act? 

2. If so, do the unambiguous severability clauses in the insurance policies, 
which state that the insurance applies separately to each insured, prevail over the 
exclusions and require the insurers to apply the exclusions separately to each 
insured, despite the intentional and criminal actions ofco-insureds? 

This Court should answer the first question in the affirmative and hold that the 

unambiguous exclusion for bodily injury "expected or intended by 'anyone we protect'" in Erie's 

homeowner insurance policy precludes coverage for the claim in the underlying case brought by 

Respondents Mary A. Neese, individually and as administratrix of the Estate of Skylar Neese, 

and David Neese against Respondent Patricia Shoaf, who is Erie's insured, because the murder 

of Skylar Neese was expected or intended by Rachel Shoaf, who is a co-insured. The Court 

should further answer the second question in the negative and hold that the unambiguous 

severability clause in Erie's policy does not prevail over the unambiguous exclusion for bodily 

injury "expected or intended by 'anyone we protect'" and require Erie to apply the exclusion 

separately to each insured, despite the intentional and criminal act of Rachel Shoaf. 



II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE I 

A. The Underlying Case 

The underlying case arises from the murder of sixteen-year-old Skylar Neese ("Skylar"), 

who, prior to her death, was a close friend of Shelia Eddy ("Eddy") and Rachel Shoaf ("Shoaf') 

(Okt. No. 1-5 at 6) (A.R. at 95). In the spring and summer of 20 12, the teenagers began to drift 

apart, and Eddy and Shoaf decided to end their friendship with Skylar. Id. Fearing that she 

would publicly disclose sensitive and embarrassing infonnation about them, Eddy and Shoaf 

embarked on a plan to murder Skylar. /d. 

In furtherance of their plan, Eddy and Shoaf arranged to meet Skylar on the night of July 

5,2012, after she completed her work shift. Id. When Skylar sneaked out of her parents' house, 

Eddy and Shoaf picked her up in a 2006 Toyota Camry owned by Eddy's mother, Tara 

Clendenen. ld. at 10 (A.R. at 99). The friends then traveled from Morgantown, West Virginia, 

to a "rural, sparsely populated area" outside of Brave, Pennsylvania, where they parked, left the 

car, and began smoking marijuana. ld. at 6 (A.R. at 95). While Skylar had her back turned, 

Eddy and Shoaf "violently and repeatedly" stabbed her in the neck and back with kitchen knives 

they had previously taped to their torsos and concealed under clothing. ld. at 7 (A.R. at 96). 

Although Eddy and Shoaf killed Skylar in the early morning hours of July 6, 2012, her 

body was not discovered until January, 2013, more than six months after her disappearance. Id. 

at 7-8 (A.R. at 96-97). Eventually, Eddy pleaded guilty to first degree murder and was sentenced 

lThe statement of the case is taken verbatim from the District Court's Order of Certification. See Barefield v. DPlC 
Cos.. Inc., 215 W. Va. 544,600 S.E.2d 256, 262 (2004) (explaining that Court does not sit as appellate court under 
the Uniform Certification of Questions of Law Act, but simply answers questions of law and will assume that the 
findings of fact by the certifying court are correct). Unless otherwise noted, all citations in the Northern District of 
West Virginia's factual background refer to the lead case, 1:14CVI55. Citations to the Appendix Record ("A.R.") 
have been added to the District Court's docket citations. 
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to life in prison with mercy. (Okt. No. 1 at 3) (A.R. at 17). Shoaf pleaded guilty to second 

degree murder and was sentenced to thirty years in prison. Id. 

On June 4, 2014, Skylar's parents, David and Mary Neese ("the Neeses"), filed a 

complaint in the Circuit Court of Monongalia County, West Virginia ("the state court action"), 

against Eddy and Shoaf, as well as Tara Clendenen ("Mrs. Clendenen"), and Shoars mother, 

Patricia Shoaf ("Mrs. Shoaf') (Okt. No. 1-5 at 3) (A.R. at 92). At the time of Skylar's murder, 

Eddy lived with Mrs. Clendenen, and Shoaf lived with Mrs. Shoaf. /d. 

In Counts I and II of the complaint, the Neeses seek damages from Eddy and Shoaf.2 Id. 

at 7-9 (A.R. at 96-98). In Count III, "Negligent SupervisionlEntrustment," they allege that Mrs. 

Clendenen and Mrs. Shoaf, as parents, guardians, and custodians of Eddy and Shoaf, "were 

negligent and careless in their supervision and guidance of their daughters." Id. at 9 (A.R. at 98). 

At the time of Skylar's murder, American National Property and Casualty Company 

("American National") insured Mrs. Clendenen under both a homeowner's policy and an 

automobile policy (Okt. No.1 at 3) (A.R. at 17).3 Following Mrs. Clendenen's demand for 

coverage, it has been defending her in the state court action pursuant to a reservation of rights. 

[d at 4 (A.R. at 18). Similarly, at the time ofSkylar's death, Erie insured Mrs. Shoaf under both 

its homeowner's and automobile policies (Case No. 1:14CVl72, Okt. No.1 at 2) (A.R. at 105).4 

Following her demand for coverage, it has been defending Mrs. Shoaf pursuant to a reservation 

of rights. Id. 

2In Count I, "Murder," the Neeses seek compensatory and punitive damages from Eddy and Shoaf (Okt. No. 1-5 at 
7-8) (A.R. at 96-97). In Count II, "Negligence/Reckless Concealment," the Neeses seek damages for concealing 
Skylar's body and providing false and misleading information regarding her disappearance." ld. at 8-9 (A.R. at 97
98). 
3Mrs. Clendenen's American National automobile policy did not cover the 2006 Toyota Camry and is not at issue in 
this litigation. 
~In addition to insuring Mrs. Shoaf under an automobile policy, Erie provided automobile coverage to Mrs. 
Clendenen for her 2006 Toyota Camry (Case No. 1:14CVI72, Okt. No. I at 2) (A.R. at \05). The parties have 
agreed that the Erie automobile policies are not at issue because Skylar's death did not arise out of the operation of a 
motor vehicle (Okt. No. 56 at 10) (A.R. at 504). 
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B. The Declaratory Judgment Action 

Although American National and Erie are not parties to the state court action, they have 

each filed suit in [District Court] seeking a declaration that, under their respective policies, they 

have no duty to defend and cover Mrs. Clendenen and Mrs. Shoaf in the Neeses' state court 

action. American National's complaint specifically seeks a declaratory judgment that Mrs. 

Clendenen is not covered under either her automobile or homeowner's policies, and that 

American National has no duty to defend or indemnify her in the state court action (Dkt. No. 1 at 

8) (AR. at 22). Similarly, Erie seeks a declaratory judgment that Eddy, Shoaf, Mrs. Clendenen, 

and Mrs. Shoaf are not covered under any of Erie's policies and therefore not entitled to a 

defense or indemnification in the state court action (Case No.1: 14CVl72, Okt. No.1 at 18) 

(AR. at 121). The Court has consolidated the cases, designating 1:14CV155, the American 

National case, as the lead case (Okt. No. 24) (A.R. at 269). 

Both American National and Erie have moved for summary judgment (Okt. Nos. 40, 42) 

(AR. at 286, 316), while the Neeses have filed a combined cross-motion for partial summary 

judgment and brief in opposition to American National and Erie's motions (Okt. No. 45) (A.R. at 

347). The Clendenens have joined the Neeses' cross-motion for summary judgment (Okt. No. 

47) (A.R. at 377), and Mrs. Shoaf has filed her own combined cross-motion for summary 

judgment and brief in response (Okt. No. 48) (A.R. at 383). On March 21, 2016, pursuant to the 

joint motion of American National and Erie, the Court dismissed Shelia Eddy and Rachel Shoaf 

as defendants (Dkt. No. 65) (A.R. at 10). 

III. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The Court has scheduled this case for oral argument pursuant to West Virginia Rule of 

Appellate Procedure 20. Currently, oral argument is scheduled for September 21,2016. 

4 



IV. STANDARD OF REVIEW 

Pursuant to West Virginia Code § 51-1A-3, "the Supreme Court of Appeals of West 

Virginia may answer a question of law certified to it by any court of the United States or by the 

highest appellate court or the intermediate appellate court of another state or of a tribe of Canada, 

a Canadian province or territory, Mexico or a Mexican state, if the answer may be determinative 

of an issue in a pending cause in the certifying court and if there is no controlling appellate 

decision, constitutional provision or statute of this state." W. Va. Code § 51-1A-3. 

In Valentine v. Sugar Rock, Inc., 234 W. Va. 526, 766 S.E.2d 785 (2014), this Court 

articulated the standard of review for reviewing a certified question from a federal court as 

follows: 

I. "A de novo standard is applied by this Court in addressing the legal issues 
presented by a certified question from a federal district or appellate court." 
Syllabus Point 1, Light v. Allstate Ins. Co., 203 W. Va. 27, 506 S.E.2d 64 (1998). 

2. When reviewing a question certified from a federal district or appellate 
court, this Court will give the question plenary review, and may consider any 
portions of the federal court's record that are relevant to the question of law to be 
answered. 

Id at Syi. Pts. 1-2. 

Moreover, in Kincaid v. Mangum, 189 W. Va. 404, 432 S.E.2d 74 (1993), this Court 

recognized: 

3. When a certified question is not framed so that this Court is able to fully 
address the law which is involved in the question, then this Court retains the 
power to reformulate questions certified to it under both the Uniform Certification 
of Questions of Law Act found in W. Va. Code, 51-lA-I, et seq. and W. Va. 
Code, 58-5-2 [1967], the statute relating to certified questions from a circuit court 
of this State to this Court. 

Id. at Syl. Pt. 3. 
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V. 	 SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

This Court should answer the first question in the affirmative and hold that applying West 

Virginia public policy and rules of contract construction the unambiguous exclusion for bodily 

injury "expected or intended by 'anyone we protect'" in Erie's homeowner insurance policy 

precludes coverage for the claim of negligent supervision in the underlying case brought by the 

Neeses against Patricia Shoaf, who is Erie's insured, because the murder of Skylar Neese was 

expected or intended by Rachel Shoaf, who is a co-insured. West Virginia public policy and 

rules of construction allow courts to apply family exclusions and similar exclusions, which 

exclude coverage for an innocent insured based on the acts of a co-insured, in a homeowner or 

umbrella policy. In addition, West Virginia public policy and rules of construction require courts 

to apply intentional acts exclusions to torts based on intentional acts even when the claims are 

couched in terms of negligence. Moreover, the majority ofjurisdictions to consider the question 

apply intentional acts exclusions, similar to the exclusion in Erie's policy, to preclude coverage 

to an insured based on the intentional or criminal acts ofa co-insured. 

The Court should further answer the second question in the negative and hold that the 

unambiguous severability clause in Erie'.s policy does not prevail over the unambiguous 

intentional acts exclusion and require Erie to apply the exclusion separately to each insured, 

despite the intentional and criminal acts of Rachel Shoaf. The Court has held that a severability 

clause does not defeat a family exclusion. Moreover, the majority ofjurisdictions to consider the 

question have held that a severability clause does not change the meaning of an intentional acts 

exclusion that precludes coverage for intentional and criminal acts of any insured. 

The Court should adopt the holdings of the majority of courts to consider these questions 

because they are consistent with West Virginia publ ic policy and rules ofcontract construction. 

6 




VI. 	 ARGUMENT 

A. 	 Applying West Virginia Public Policy and Rules of Contract Construction, 
the Unambiguous Exclusion in Erie's Policy for "Bodily injury, property 
damage, or personal injury expected or intended by 'anyone we protect' •..," 
Precludes Liability Coverage for Insureds Who Did Not Commit any 
Intentional Act. 

The Court should answer the first certified question in the affirmative. Applying West 

Virginia public policy and rules of contract construction, the unambiguous exclusion in Erie's 

homeowner policy for "[b]odily injury, property damage, or personal injury expected or intended 

by 'anyone we protect' .. .,,,5 precludes liability coverage for Erie's insured, Patricia Shoaf, 

because the murder ofSkylar Neese was expected or intended by a co-insured, Rachel Shoaf. 

1. 	 West Virginia public policy and rules of construction allow courts to 
apply family exclusions and similar exclusions, which exclude 
coverage for an innocent insured based on the acts of a co-insured, in 
a homeowner or umbrella policy. 

West Virginia public policy and rules of construction allow courts to apply family 

exclusions and similar exclusions, which exclude coverage for an innocent insured based on the 

acts of a co-insured, in a homeowner or umbrella policy. For example, in Rich v. Allstate 

Insurance Co., 191 W. Va. 308, 445 S.E.2d 249 (1994), this Court held: 

1. ""'Where provisions in an insurance policy are plain and unambiguous 
and where such provisions are not contrary to a statute, regulation, or public 
policy, the provisions will be applied and not construed,'" Syl., Farmers I & 

5The exclusion in Erie's policy states in full: 
We do not cover under Bodily Injury Liability Coverage, Property Damage Liability Coverage, 
Personal Injury Liability Coverage and Medical Payments To Others Coverage: 

1. 	 Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or intended by anyone 
we protect even if: 
a. 	 the degree, kind or quality of the injury or damage is different than what was 

expected or intended; or 
b. 	 a different person, entity, real or personal property sustained the injury or 

damage than was expected or intended. 
A.R. at 150 (emphasis in original). 
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Merchants' Bankv. Balboa Insurance Co., 171 W. Va. 390, 299 S.E.2d 1 (1982), 
quoting syl., Tynes v. Supreme Life Insurance Co., 158 W. Va. 188,209 S.E.2d 
567 (1974)." Syl. pt. 2, Shamblin v. Nationwide Mutual Ins. Co., 175 W. Va. 337, 
332 S.E.2d 639 (1985). 

3. When a homeowner's insurance policy excludes coverage to an "insured 
person" and defines an "insured person" as a resident of the named insured's 
household and a dependent person in the named insured's care, a minor child who 
sustains bodily injury as a result of the negligence of the named insured on the 
named insured's premises, such minor child also being a resident of the named 
insured's household and who is a dependent person in the named insured's care, is 
not covered under the homeowner's insurance policy. Such exclusionary 
language within the homeowner's insurance policy is not violative of the public 
policy of this state. 

Id at Syl. Pts. 1,3. 

In Rich, the Court upheld the validity of an insurer's homeowner policy exclusion that 

excluded "'bodily injury to an insured person ... whenever any benefit of this coverage would 

accrue directly or indirectly to an insured person.'" Id, 445 S.E.2d at 251 (emphasis added). In 

that case, an insured person was defined in the policy as "'[the named insured] and, if a resident 

of your household: (a) any relative; and (b) any dependent person in your care.'" Id. The Court 

agreed with the insurer that the language of the policy was clear and that it "unmistakably 

exclude[d] any 'insured person' from coverage for bodily injury." Id. (emphasis added). The 

Court expressly rejected an argument made by a minor child that the exclusionary language in 

the policy, particularly to the extent that it excluded coverage for a minor child in the care of the 

named insured, was contrary to the public policy of West Virginia. Id The Court reasoned: 

The important distinction to recognize here is that the requirements for 
automobile insurance are dictated by statute. There is no legislative declaration 
regarding the requirements of homeowner's insurance coverage. Therefore, the 
parties must rely exclusively upon the policy language in order to determine 
whether there is coverage in this instance. 

8 



Moreover, this type of exclusionary language in homeowner's insurance policies 
has been held not to be violative of public policy in other jurisdictions. In State 
Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Clendening, 150 Cal. App. 3d 40, 197 Cal. Rptr. 
377 (1983), the court therein was faced with the same question before this Court: 
Whether the family exclusion clause in the homeowner's policy was void as 
against public policy. The policy provisions in that case were comparable to the 
provisions in the case now before us, and the court held, "[w]here, as here, the 
exclusionary clause is clear, plain and unambiguous and there is no statutory 
prohibition, there is no public policy reason to prohibit insurance contracts such 
as these." Id 197 Cal. Rptr. at 378 (citations omitted). Accord, State Farm Gen. 
Ins. Co. v. Emerson, 102 Wash. 2d 477,687 P.2d 1139, 1143 (1984) ("Absent 
prior expression of public policy from either the Legislature or prior court 
decisions, our inquiry as to whether the family exclusion clause clearly offends 
the public good, must be answered in the negative. . .. We shall not invoke 
public policy to override an otherwise proper contract even though its terms may 
be harsh and its necessity doubtful."); Groffv. State Farm Fire and Casualty Co., 
646 F. Supp. 973, 974-75 (E.D. Pa. 1986) ("[T]he policy unambiguously excludes 
coverage. . .. [I]n view of the clear language of the policy and the state of the 
decisional law of Pennsylvania, [the court] need not explore [the public] policy 
considerations.") 

In Cordle v. General Hugh Mercer Corp., 174 W. Va. 321, 325, 325 S.E.2d 111, 
114 (1984), we have previously determined the following language particularly 
helpful as to what the public policy is in West Virginia: 

'Much has been written by text writers and by the courts as to the 
meaning of the phrase "public policy." All are agreed that its 
meaning is as ''variable'' as it is "vague," and that there is no 
absolute rule by which courts may determine what contracts 
contravene the public policy of the state. The rule of law, most 
generally stated, is that "public policy" is that principle of I~w 
which holds that "no person can lawfully do that which has a 
tendency to be injurious to the public or against public good * * *" 
even though "no actual injury" may have resulted therefrom in a 
particular case ''to the public." It is a question of law which the 
court must decide in light of the particular circumstances of each 
case. 

The sources determinative of public policy are, among others, our 
federal and state constitutions, our public statutes, our judicial 
decisions, the applicable principles of the common law, the 
acknowledged prevailing concepts of the federal and state 
governments relating to and affecting the safety, health, morals and 
general welfare of the people for whom government - with us - is 
factually established.' 
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(quoting Allen v. Commercial Casualty Ins. Co., 131 NJ.L. 475, 37 A.2d 37, 38
39 (1944». The appellant has failed to establish that the exclusionary language 
within the homeowner's insurance policy tended to be "injurious to the public or 
against the public good." 

!d. at 251-52 (emphasis added) (footnotes omitted).6 

More recently, in Sayre v. State Farm Fire & Casualty Co., No. 11-0962, 2012 WL 

3079148 CW. Va. May 25, 2012)/ this Court upheld the validity of a family exclusion in a 

homeowner policy, which excluded liability coverage for bodily injury to "'you [the named 

insured] or any insured[.]'" Id at *1 (emphasis added). In that case, Gary Culp, who was a 

named insured on the policy, killed his wife, Linda Culp, who was also a named insured. In 

denying insurance coverage for the estate's wrongful death claim, the Court explained: "Linda 

Culp was a named insured and there was no liability coverage in the homeowner's policy for 

bodily injury ofan insured." Id at *2. 

Similarly, in Berkhouse v. Great American Assurance Co., No. 13-0264, 2013 WL 

6152414 (W. Va. Nov. 22, 2013), this Court held that an umbrella policy's liquor liability 

exclusion, which excluded "[a]ny liability of any 'Insured, '" excluded coverage for negligent 

training and supervision claims against the Charleston Moose Lodge. Id at * 4 (emphasis 

added). The Court explained that the exclusion was plain and unambiguous and that accordingly 

there was no basis to apply the reasonable expectations doctrine as follows:

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