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

V. ARGUMENT 

Usually it is the insurance company that is asserting technical arguments about the way in 

which a policy should be read based upon the terms of the policy, while the policy holder is pleading 

with the Court for an interpretation of the policy using plain meaning. However, sometimes, the 

policy language is so poorly written that a technical argument does not help the insurer. See, e.g., 

Atl. Cas. Ins. Co. v. Pasko Masonry, Inc., 718 F.3d 721, 723 (7th Cir. 2013) ("The exclusion is 

poorly drafted. The term'contractor' is exemplified rather than clearly defined. "); Am. Home Assur. 

Co. v. Pope, 591 F.3d 992, 1001 (8th Cir. 2010) (noting that an intentional acts exclusion was "so 

poorly drafted [that it left] open a question of what it does and does not cover"). In this matter, the 

policy language itself does not support the interpretation proposed by its author-Erie. The 

document together. We will not rewrite the terms of the policy; instead, we enforce it as written."); 
see also, e.g., State Auto Prop. & Cas. Co. v. Wohlfeil, 889 F. Supp. 2d 799,804 (N.D. W. Va. 2012) 
(applying West Virginia law while applying the policy's definitions to define common expressions 
such as "property damage," "bodily injury," and "occurrence"). 
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Respondent is requesting this Court to strictly apply the definition of a unique term selected and 

drafted by her insurance company to determine that an exclusion does not operate to preclude 

coverage for her, while the insurer is requesting the court to completely ignore that an expression 

it drafted has a specific meaning it chose.8 

Specifically, Erie wants this court to treat its policy identically to that of the one issued by 

ANPAC, suggesting that "any insured" (used in ANP AC's policy) has the same meaning as "anyone 

we protect" (used in Erie's policy). While the Respondent would agree with Erie that when read 

aloud they sound similar, but when the policy is read in its entirety, and analyzed one cannot help 

but notice that the entire expression "any insured" is not a defined term- "insured" is-in the 

ANPAC policy, whereas the entire expression "anyone we protect" is a defined term in the Erie 

policy. By including the pronoun "anyone" within the defined expression, Erie has created a 

situation in which its intentional acts exclusion is not operative if "anyone" it indemnifies commits 

an intentional act that causes damages, but rather only excludes damages that were intentionally 

caused by all insureds, because "anyone we protect" is defined as "you and ... relatives and wards." 

In other words, the plain and ordinary meaning ofthe exclusion as read, is overwritten by the specific 

definition that Erie selected for "anyone we protect." [AR139.] 

Erie's use of the colloquial expression "anyone we protect" instead of the traditional 

"insured,"does not require Erie to indemnify R.S. for the murder of S.N. See Stanley, 216 W. Va. 

at 55, 602 S.E.2d at 498 (Starcher, J., concurring) (''There is no way on God's green earth that 

[Leeber and Jesse Stanley] should have been permitted to shift the cost of their conduct onto an 

8It is not without significance that at no place in Erie's Appellate brief does it provide the 
Court with the definition of "anyone we protect," nor does it advise the Court as to why the 
expression is in single quotation marks in the certified question. 
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insurance company."). As noted by Judge Keeley, the murder was not an "occurrence" from R.S.'s 
\ 

standpoint. [AR506.] Consequently, the Court would never get to the question of whether the 

intentional acts exclusion applies. Further, the severability clause in Erie's policy, requires that the 

policy be read separately as to each individual insured. After applying the severability clause, this 

Court should read the intentional acts exclusion as follows for Patricia Shoaf: 

We do not cover under Bodily Injury Liability coverage . .. : 

1. Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or intended 
by [Patricia Shoaf]. 

[ARI39, 150, & 152.] Likewise, the policy would be read similarly for R.S.: 

We do not cover under Bodily Injury Liability coverage . .. : 

1. Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or intended 
by [R.S.]. 

[AR139, 150, & 152.] Therefore, this Court should answer the certified questions such that it is 

clear that the Erie policy does provide coverage to Patricia Shoaf for the claims asserted against her 

in the Circuit Court of Monongalia County, West Virginia, by the Estate ofS.N. and S.N.' s parents. 

A. 	 As to Erie Homeowners Policy, this Court Should Answer the 
First Certified Question Separately, and Find That Erie's 
Intentional Acts Exclusion Requires the Policy to Be Read as 
''Bodily Injury, Property Damage orPersonal Injury Expected or 
Intended by [Patricia Shoaf and R.S.l." 

1. 	 Before this court analyzes the intentional acts 
exclusion, the Court must re-write the exclusion in 
accordance with the definition selected by Erie. 

I hate definitions. 9 

9BENJAMlN DISRAELI, EARL OF BEACONSFIELD, VIVIAN GREY bk. II., ch. 6 (1826). 
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The Respondent agrees with Erie that the intentional acts exclusion is unambiguous. 

However, the Respondent disagrees with Erie's conclusion as to how the specific definition of 

"anyone we protect" is to be read in the exclusion. Erie has taken the position that the intentional 

acts exclusion should be read to mean that if bodily injury is expected or intended by anyone we 

protect, then there is no coverage. However, such a reading of the policy fails to recognize that the 

exclusion has a defined term within it with a "special meaning": 

We do not cover under Bodily Injury Liability coverage . .. : 

1. Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or intended 
by anyone we protect even if: 

[AR139 & 150.] By bolding the entire expression "anyone we protect" in the exclusion, Erie has 

advised all readers of the policy that the entire expression has a "special meaning," and that the 

reader is to employ that "special meaning" when reading the expression "anyone we protect" 

throughout the policy. [AR139 (Throughout your policy and its endorsements the following words 

have a special meaning when they appear in bold type: ...").] By comparison, ANP AC's intentional 

acts exclusion states as follows: 

a. 	 which is expected or intended by any insured even if the actual injury 
or damage is different than expected or intended; ... 

[AR82.] ANPAC's policy then states that "certain words and phrases are defined as follows:" and 

defines "insured" to mean "you and the following residents of your household: a. your relatives; b. 

any other person under the age of21 who is in the care of any person named above ...." [AR70.] 

Accordingly, in the ANPAC policy, the pronoun "any" is not included within the defined expression 

"insured." In other words, although both Erie and ANPAC's exclusions use the pronoun "any" or 

"anyone," they are not to be read the same, as "anyone we protect" is a defined term. 
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As discussed above, when interpreting documents, this Court fust reviews the document for 

a definition. Hix, 123 W. Va. 637, syl. pt. 1, 17 S.E.2d 810, syl. pt. 1 (1941), overruled on other 

grounds by Rutledge, 170 W. Va. at 162,291 S.E.2d at 477) ("In the absence of any definition of 

the intended meaning of words or tenns used in a legislative enactment, they will, in the 

interpretation of the act, be given their common, ordinary and accepted meaning in the connection 

in which they are used.") (emphasis added). In Hix, this Court made it clear in the legislative 

context, the Court would not resort to defining tenns if there was a definition section. This Court 

consistently reviews insurance policy's definition section, and does not provide a general definition 

if the policy has already provided a specific meaning of a term. See supra note 7; see also, e.g., 

Columbia Cas. Co. v. Westfield Ins. Co., 217 W. Va. 250, 251-52,617 S.E.2d 797,798-99 (2005) 

("Discussions in judicial opinions ofinsurance coverage issues often involve parsing the convoluted 

and confusing language of insurance policies.") Additionally, this Court has substituted defmed 

temlS with the applicable definitions when discussing insureds or named insureds. In Glen Falls Ins. 

Co., the court substituted "your" with "Billie Joe Smith." 217 W. Va. at 221,617 S.E.2d at 768 

(stating "he must, among other requirements, have also been 'a resident of [Billie Joe Smith's] 

household' and have been 'actually residing in [Billie Joe Smith's] household on the date the loss 

occurred"'). In Farmers Mut. Ins. Co v. Tucker, the Court substituted "you" with "Locie," the name 

of the insured who was defmed as "you." 213 W. Va. at 19, 576 S.E.2d at 264 ("The property 

insurance policy provided liability coverage for any of Locie's 'relatives if residents of [Locie's] 

household.") In Rich v. Allstate Ins. Co., the Court substituted "you" with "the named insured." 191 

W. Va. 308, 310,445 S.E.2d 249, 251 (1998) ("[the named insured] and, if a resident of your 
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household: (a) any relative; and (b) any dependent person in your care").l0 In other words, the 

Respondent's request that the Court substitute "anyone we protect" for the defInition Erie assigned 

is not a foreign practice to this Court. 

In most insurance policies, the one purchasing the policy is referred to as the Named Insured, 

and those protected by the policy are called Insureds or Additional Insureds. Erie has taken the 

unusual step of using the colloquial expression "anyone we protect" to identify (not describe) who 

it insures. Although the expression "anyone we protect," taken in general conversation outside of 

the terms and conditions of the policy may be easier for the average person to understand than the 

term "Insured," the question in this matter is not is not what "anyone we protect" means, as Erie has 

defIned this expression as follows: 

• 	 "anyone we protect" means you and the following residents of your 
household: 

x 1. relatives and wards; 

x 	 2. other persons in the care of anyone we protect. 

Under Home and Family Liability Protection, anyone we protect also means: 

3. 	 Any person or organization legally responsible for animals or 
watercraft which are owned by you or any person included in 
1. Or 2. and covered by this policy. Any person or 
organization using or having custody of these animals or 
watercraft in the course of any business, or without 
permission of the owner is not anyone we protect; 

4. 	 Any person with respect to any vehicle covered by this policy. 
Any person using or having custody of this vehicle in the 

10Although the Court in Rich does not clearly provide all ofthe defInitions to state clearly that 
"the Named Insured" has been substituted for "you," several Allstate cases from that time period 
indicate that "you" was the removed term from the Allstate policy language, and that the Named 
Insured meant "you." E.g., Allstate Ins. Co. v. DiGiorgi, 9 F. Supp. 2d 657,658-59 (S.D. W. Va., 
1998). 
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course of any business use, or without permission of the 
owner is not anyone we protect 

[AR139.] The definition of "anyone we protect" is conjunctive (and) not disjunctive (or), as it states 

that it insured "you and." [Id. (italics added)]. All parties agree that "you" means Patricia Shoaf. 

Further, the next question is who are "the following residents of your household: 1. relatives and 

ward; 2. Other persons in the care of anyone we protect ... "? [AR139.] There is no dispute that 

RS. meets this second portion of the definition. Therefore in completing the substitution of 

expression for "anyone we protect," it should be read as "[Patricia Shoaf] and [RS.]." Again, Erie 

chose to use the conjunction "and" in its definition of"anyone we protect," not the disjunctive "or." 

2. 	 In order for the intentional acts exclusion to be 
applied as written, the Court must rmd that all 
insureds acted expected or intended the injury. 

The intentional acts exclusion states that Erie does not cover: 

1. 	 Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or 
intended by [Patricia Shoaf and R.S.] even if: 

a. 	 the degree, ind or quality of the injury or damage is 
different than what was expected or intended; or 

b. 	 a different person, entity, real or personal property 
sustained the injury or damage than was expected or 
intended. 

[AR150.] As examined above, by defining the expression "anyone we protect," Erie is forcing the 

Court to use to substitute the definition of "anyone we protect" (viz."Patricia Shoaf and RS.") in 

place of the defined term to analyze the exclusion. Accordingly, when the applicable defined term 

is exchanged for its definition, as this court has done in the past, and as Erie requires by its own 

language, the intentional acts exclusion reads: 

1. 	 Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury expected or 
intended by [Patricia Shoaf and R.S.] .... 
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[AR139 &150.] The next step for the Court is determine whether the Complaint by S.N.'s family 

alleges that the various injuries to S.N. were expected or intended by both Patricia Shoaf and R.S., 

since Erie uses the conjunctive and instead of the disjunctive or to define its insureds. Aetna Cas. 

& Sur. Co. v. Pitroio, 176 W. Va. 190, 194,342 S.E.2d 156, 160 (1986) (stating "an insurer's duty 

to defend is tested by whether the allegations in the plaintiffs complaint are reasonably susceptible 

of an interpretation that the claim may be covered by the terms of the insurance policy") (citation 

omitted). In this matter it is clear that the Complaint in the state court action clearly does not allege 

any intentional acts on the part ofPatricia Shoaf. [AR124-130.] Rather, all of the allegations against 

Patricia Shoaf relate to negligence on her part. Further, there is no allegations in the declaratory 

judgment action or anywhere else that Patricia Shoaf intended or expected the injuries to S.N. 

Consequently, since Erie cannot establish that the injuries complained of in the State Court were 

expected and intended by both Patricia Shoaf and R.S. (viz. "anyone we protect" as defined in the 

policy), the Court must find that the intentional acts exclusion is not operative, and that Erie owes 

a duty to defend and indemnify Patricia Shoaf in the state court action. 

3. 	 Erie's use of different terms in its exclusions to 
identify whose conduct is excluded, supports the 
Respondent's position that "anyone we protect" 
should be read in the conjunctive as [Patricia 
Shoaf and R.S.] 

Instead of the defined expression "anyone we protect," Erie could have used "Insured," 

"Alpha Whisky Papa," "Apple White Penguin" or the simple variable "X." Since the expression is 

"defined" within the policy, it simply does not matter what grouping of characters are used as the 

expression itself. Jackson, 232 W. Va. at syl. pt. 4, 753 S.E.2d at syl. pt. 4. Regardless of what 

defined expression is used, the Court would substitute the definition for the defined term to 

determine the application of the exclusion. Notably, Erie's policy tacitly acknowledges that such 
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substitution will be done with its defined terms. Every exclusion ofthe homeowners liability portion 

of the policy refemcing the insured, uses the expression "anyone we protect" except one. [AR150

51.] Exclusion 12, the so called "injury to insured exclusion" is the only place Erie does not use the 

expression "anyone we protect" to refer to those it insures.u [AR15l.] Exclusion 12 states: 

12. 	 Bodily injury or personal injury to you and if residents of your 
house of your household, your relatives, and persons under the age 
of 21 in your care or in the care of your resident relatives. 

[AR151 (underline added); compare Exclusion 1 of Erie's policy (intentional acts exclusion using 

the defined expression "anyone we protect") with Exclusion 12 (injury to an insured exclusion in 

which the policy says "you and ifresidents) AR 150-151.] Significantly, those identified as excluded 

from coverage mirrors the definition of "anyone we protect" with the a minor deviation. Exclusion 

12 uses the disjunction "or" immediately preceding the last clause ("in the care of your resident 

relatives") instead of and as is used in the definition of "anyone we protect".l2 [Compare 

llErie's policy has two sets ofExclusions that apply to Bodily Injury Liability Coverage. The 
first set starts on AR150, and the second begins on AR151. Exclusion 12 (the "injury to an insured" 
exclusion) that is referenced above is the second Exclusion 12 on AR151, not to be confused with 
the first Exclusion 12 (the "punitive damages" exclusion).

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